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Dear Jen Erickson:  
 
Thank you for your email dated September 13, 2024, to the Department of Employee 
Trust Funds (ETF) and the Group Insurance Board (Board) expressing concern about 
the increase in the cost of a dental service from January to September. You noted that 
the cost of a dental procedure for which you received an Estimate of Benefits (EOB) in 
January increased when the procedure was performed in September resulting in an 
increase of nearly $500 in out-of-pocket expenses.  
 
You expressed frustration that Delta Dental of Wisconsin (Delta) can adjust their prices 
without prior notice and that this lack of notification makes it difficult for members to 
know and plan for associated costs.  
 
Delta administers the State of Wisconsin Uniform Dental Benefit Program, and your 
concerns have been shared with them. Delta was asked to respond to your concerns, 
and their response has been incorporated into this letter.  
 
Delta stated they received two separate predeterminations for the same initial  
procedures. The first one was received on January 28, 2024, and the second one was 
received on February 21, 2024. The first predetermination only included one  
The second pretermination included two  The submitted cost for the first 
predetermination was $5,533. The second pretermination showed costs of $8,233.  
 
According to Delta’s contract with their Preferred Provider Organization (PPO) 
providers, providers are responsible for any fee adjustments related to covered 
services. The dental services in question are  for 
which the submitted fee was consistent across both predeterminations at $2,800. 
However, the allowance fee changed: the January 28 predetermination had a 
contracted fee of $2,019, while the February 21 predetermination reflected an increase 
to $2,300. The allowance fee is the rate agreed to between Delta and the provider. 
 



Jen Erickson 
October 7, 2024 
Page 2 
 
The provider rates are contracted between Delta and the provider. Notifications are not 
made to the member directly outside of claims processing and the EOB provided to 
members.  
 
You spoke with a Delta customer service representative on January 11, 2024, to 
discuss the procedure. At that time, it was explained to you that the 
predetermination only included one . A second predetermination was dated 
February 21, 2024, this predetermination included two   
 
During your call with Delta on February 16, 2024, the estimated benefits and estimated 
out-of-pocket costs were discussed based on the first pretermination. The second 
predetermination was not completed until February 21, 2024. The second 
predetermination included the increase in the allowance fee that changed between the 
time the first and second predetermination were issued and reflected the out-of-pocket 
cost. This predetermination was sent to you and your dentist on February 21.  
 
Predeterminations are accurate based on the dates they are calculated and printed and 
show the available benefits as of that date. If the benefit plan design does not change, 
Delta would honor the coinsurance, deductible, and annual maximum calculation that 
would apply to the services for a period of one year. If the provider rates change, the 
available remaining annual maximum and deductible applied to the claim may change 
due to other claims being processed after a predetermination was printed, and 
coordination of benefits may be applied.  
 
I hope that you have found the information provided in this letter helpful. If you have any 
further questions or concerns, please don’t hesitate to reach out using the contact 
information provided below. 
 
  
Sincerely, 
 
Tom Rasmussen, Life and Dental Insurance Program Manager 
Office of Strategic Health Policy 
Department of Employee Trust Funds 
Tom.rasmussen@etf.wi.gov 
(608) 266-0994 
 
 
 
  
  
 




